
  
 

 
 

 

Tuesday, May 9, 2017  
 

 

7:00 PM Council Regular Meeting 

1. Call to Order 

2. Invocation 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Approval of Agenda……………………………………………………………………………………….…….…. p.1-2  

5. Recognitions and Presentations 

6. Public Comments  

This portion of the meeting is to receive comments from the public on items not included in this agenda.  Citizens 
should sign up prior to the start of the meeting.  The Council is interested in hearing your concerns, but may take no 
action or deliberate on the subject matter at this time.  Topics requiring further investigation will be referred to the 
appropriate town officials or staff and may be scheduled for a future agenda.  Each speaker limited to 3 minutes 
with a total of 15 minutes allotted for this purpose. 

 

7. Consent Agenda   

a. Approve minutes (Attachment #2a) ......................................................................... p. 3 - 21 

i. Council’s Regular meeting April 11, 2017  

ii. Council’s Work Session April 25, 2017 

b. Acceptance of Monthly Financial Reports (Attachment #2b) ……………………………..……..p. 22 – 46 

c. Use of the Parks for “Gus the Bus” program (Attachment #2c) ………………………………...p. 47 - 49  

d. Delinquent Utility Account Write Offs (Attachment #2d) …………………………….…….………p.50 -52 

 

8. Public Hearing(s)      

a. FY2018 Budget and Capital Improvement Program (Attachment #3) ……….…….……p.53 -61 

b. Rezoning – Downtown Revitalization Overlay District to C-2 (General Commercial)      
(Attachment #4) ……………………………………………………………………………………….…………….…….……p.62 - 68 
 

c. Text Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance (Sections 86- 22, 32, 132, 192, 292, 293, 674, 
731, 731.1, 732, and 736) (Attachment #5) ………………………………………….……….…….……p.69 - 74 

 

d. Comprehensive Plan Update  (Attachment #6) ………………………………..………….…….……p.75  

Town of Altavista 
 

Town Council  
Regular Meeting Agenda 

J.R. “Rudy” Burgess Town Hall 

510 7th Street 

Altavista, VA  24517 



Town Council Meeting Agenda   Tuesday, May 9, 2017 
 
 

 Public Hearing(s)   (continued)      

e. Text Amendments to the Cross Connection Control Ordinance    
  (Attachment #7) …...p.76 - 92 
 

9. New/Unfinished Business (20 minutes) 

a. Trade Lot Agreement Revision – Altavista Band Boosters (Attachment #8)……p.93  

b.  Classification/Compensation Study  (Attachment #9)……………………………………p.94 - 96 

 
10. Reports 

a. Town Manager’s Report (Attachment #10)………………………………………………………. p.97 

b. Departmental Reports (Attachment #11)……………………………………………………..……p.98 - 111 

 

11. Informational Items/Late Arriving Matters 

a. Calendars (Attachment #12)…………………………………………………………………………………p.112 -113 

b. Correspondence (Attachment #13) …………………………………………….………………………p.114 

i. VTI Thank You Letter (Donation of VFDs) 

12. Matters from Council 

13. Closed Session 

Section 2.2-3711 (A) (3) regarding discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public 
purpose, or of the disposition of publicly held real property, where discussion in an open meeting would 
adversely affect the bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public body. 
 

14. Adjournment 

 

UPCOMING COUNCIL MEETINGS/ACTIVITIES -Calendar 

 (All meetings are at Town Hall unless otherwise noted) 

Saturday, May 13, 2017 @5:00 p.m.  Habitat Celebration (Booker Building) 

Tuesday, May 23, 2017 @ 5:00 p.m.  Town Council Work Session 

Thursday, May 25, 2017 @ Noon  CC Business Appreciation Luncheon (Hyland Heights Bapt. Ch) 

Tuesday, June 13, 2017 @ 5:00 p.m.  Town Council Work Session 

Tuesday, June 27, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.  Town Council Regular Meeting 

 

 
Notice to comply with Americans with Disabilities Act:  Special assistance is available for disabled persons addressing Town 
Council. Efforts will be made to provide adaptations or accommodations based on individual needs of qualified individuals with 
disability, provided that reasonable advance notification has been received by the Town Clerk’s Office.  For assistance, please 
contact the Town Clerk’s Office, Town of Altavista, 510 Seventh Street, Altavista, VA  24517 or by calling (434) 369-5001. 
 
Thank you for taking the time to participate in your Town Council meeting.  The Mayor and Members of Council invite and 
encourage you to attend whenever possible because good government depends on the interest and involvement of citizens. 

 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Minutes │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 Minutes in draft form are attached for Council’s review.  The minutes are from the Town 
Council’s regular meeting held April 11, 2017; and the Council’s Work Session held on April 25, 
2017.   If there are any corrections, please call the Town Manager in advance of Tuesday night’s 
meeting so that corrected versions of the draft minutes can be circulated for review before 
adoption of the Consent Agenda 

 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval   

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the minutes of the April 11, 2017 
Regular Meeting; and the April 25, 2017 Work Session.   

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Minutes (April 11, 2017; & April 25, 2017) 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7a │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2a │ 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

 

The meeting of the Council of the Town of Altavista was held in the Council Chambers 

of the J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street on April 11, 2017 at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

1. Mayor Mattox called the meeting to order and presided.   

           

2. Rev. Mitch Etheridge, Motley Baptist Church, gave the invocation. 

 

Council members 

 present:    Mayor Michael Mattox 

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield 

      Mrs. Beverley Dalton  

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  

     Mr. Timothy George 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham 

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey 

 

Also present:   Mr. J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 

     Mr. Daniel Witt, Assistant Town Manager 

Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Finance Director 

Mr. Dennis Jarvis, Economic Dev. Director 

Mr. David Garrett, Public Works Director 

Mr. Tom Fore, Public Utilities Director 

Mr. Steve Bond, Wastewater Treatment Plant 

     Mr. John Eller, Town Attorney 

     Mrs. Mary Hall, Administration 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4. Mayor Mattox asked if there were any questions or changes to the agenda. 

 

      A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. George, to approve the agenda 

as presented. 

               

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

 

5. Recognitions and Presentations 

 

a. Outside Agency Budget Requests 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised staff sent out reminders to the outside agencies that are 

seeking funding from the Town during Fiscal Year 2018 that were not in 

attendance at the previous meeting and asked that they come to the April 

meeting for funding consideration.  He noted all funding request are included 

in the Proposed FY2018 Budget. 

 

 

Mr. Nathan Kolb, Small Business Development Center, provided Council 

with a copy of his 2016 annual report.  Small Business Development Center 

provides education and advice to small business centers within the region.  He 

noted he is usually in the town of Altavista three times a month to spend the 

day.  The biggest initiative here in Altavista has been the Pop-Up Program. 

 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

 

6. Public Comment 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to speak on anything not listed on the 

agenda.   

 

No one came forward.   

 

7. Consent Agenda 

 

a) Minutes- Regular Meeting March 14, 2017/Council’s Work Session March 28, 

2017 –The Council approved the minutes of the Council meeting and Council 

Work Session meeting.   

b) Monthly Finance Reports-Council approved the monthly reports 

i. Invoices 

ii. Revenues & Expenditures Report 

iii. Reserve Balance/Investment Report 

c) Regional Law Enforcement Mutual Aid Agreement Adoption 

d) Declaration of Surplus Property 

e) Budget Amendment(s)/Departmental Transfers 

f) AOT Mural “Challenge Grant” 

A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mrs. Overbey, to approve the 

consent agenda as presented. 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

8. Public Hearing 

 

9. New/Unfinished Business 

 

a. Route 43 “Gateway Project” Discussion/Approval of Design Proposal 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised at the March 28th Town Council Work Session, Council 

discussed the “Rt. 43 Gateway Project” which began as a Streetscape project 

being financed via VDOT “Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP)” funds 

(80%) with Town match (20%).   The inclusion of a utility component was 

discussed and staff was directed to look at this and seek how to move forward.  

He presented Council with a Project Breakdown.  The Streetscape Project will be 

funded through VDOT TAP grant funds and Town match, the majority of which 

is obligated.  The remaining needed funds are being requested through a Tobacco 

Commission grant request, should that be unsuccessful, the Town will seek 

additional VDOT TAP funds in the fall. The Utility Project would be funded by 

two sources, with the Storm water aspect funded by existing General Fund 

revenues, while the Water and Sewer aspect may be funded through an “internal” 

borrowing of funds from the Town’s General Fund to the Town’s Enterprise 

Fund.  The majority of the funds for construction of either project would not be 

needed until FY2018.   The Storm water funds are included in the FY2018 Budget 

and assuming the “internal borrowing” option is selected for the Water/Sewer 

portion; those funds are identified in the FY2018 Budget to cover the construction 

costs.   The repayment of those funds would begin in the FY2019 Budget.  He 

stated at this time, staff is seeking approval to execute the “Engineering Design” 

components of the Streetscape and the Utility Projects based on the proposal 

submitted by Hurt & Proffitt.  The cost for these services would be $54,425 for 

the Streetscape (VDOT/General Fund earmarked funds); and $31,515 for the 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

Utility (General Fund and Enterprise Fund).  The Streetscape funds are included 

in current year’s budget (FY2017); the Utility Funds were not included in the 

current year’s budget (FY2017), as the project did not exist at time of budget 

adoption.  Staff is seeking to find excess/unspent funds for the General Fund 

portion ($7,248) and Enterprise Fund portion ($24,267), if existing funds aren’t 

available they would have to  come from Reserves. 

 

Mr. George, seconded by Mrs. Dalton, motioned to “Award the Design Services 

for the Rt. 43 Gateway Project” to Hurt & Proffitt for $85,940.  
 

 Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

b. Consideration of VDH Fluoride Grant 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised at the March 28th Town Council Work Session, Council 

discussed the Town applying for a Virginia Department of Health Fluoride Grant 

in FY2017 and FY2018.  The funds would help with offsetting costs associated 

with updating the fluoride equipment at both, Reynolds and McMinnis Springs.  

Staff is seeking approval of $40,000 in FY2017 to buy necessary equipment, 

which would then be reimbursed by VDH as part of the FY2017 grant.  Staff has 

included funds in the amount of $60,000 in the draft FY2018 Budget to serve as 

the Town’s match for the $70,000 of VDH funds over the two fiscal year period.  

The total project estimate is $130,000. 

 

Mr. Emerson, seconded by Mr. George, motioned to appropriate $40,000 for the 

purchase of equipment associated with a VDH Fluoride grant, with said funds 

being reimbursable and approve submittal of the Town’s intention for the FY2017 

and FY2018 VDH Fluoride Grant.  

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

 

c. FY2018 Budget & Capital Improvement Plan-First Reading 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised at the March 28th Town Council Work Session, Council 

continued discussion in regard to the FY2018 Budget and Capital Improvement 

Plan.  He noted staff has made the changes to the documents as directed by the 

consensus of Council.  The Fiscal Year 2018 proposed  budget (General Fund, 

Capital Improvement Program (CIP), State/Highway Reimbursement Fund, 

Cemetery Fund and Enterprise Fund totals $10,361,060.  The proposed Fiscal 

Year 2018 budget is decreasing by 4.8% from the Adopted Fiscal Year 2017 

budget. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale presented Council with budget Revenues and Departmental 

Expenditures; a Budget Overview; and the changes to the budget to date. 

 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

Mr. Higginbotham questioned the proposed $62,000 for Council/Planning 

Commission. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Council/Planning Commission was separated from 

Administration.  He advised $35,000 of this amount is to upgrade the 

Audio/Visual in the Council Chambers.  

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked Mr. Coggsdale to summarize what is in the budget in 

regards to salaries. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated there is a placeholder that includes funds that would allow 

implementation of Option 3 of the classification study as submitted by Springsted, 

LLC.  He noted Springsted, LLC is finalizing some numbers. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked when the update study is anticipated to be received. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised it should be available at the April 25th work session.  The 

implementation total is approximately $100,000.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked if the budget included a cost of living raise for employees. 

 

Mrs. Shelton responded it does not. 

 

Mrs. Brumfield questioned the Non-departmental line item for $308,000. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised this line item is for outside agencies asking for funding.  

Things that do not fit into the Town’s operating budget. 

 

Mr. George asked for a rough estimate of generated funds from the Cigarette tax.  

 

Mrs. Shelton advised approximately $116,000.   

 

Mr. Emerson referred to the $10,000 funding request that is included in the 

budget for the Altavista EMS and asked how the monies would be dispersed to 

them and when.  He stated his concern is if the Altavista EMS would start back up 

and felt the money should not be dispersed until something changes. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised staff would consult with Council before these funds are 

dispersed to the Altavista EMS.  He noted agencies are required to provide copy 

of their audit, which is Step 1.   

 

Mayor Mattox noted three agencies were asked to come out to request the funds at 

this meeting; Small Business Development Center, Campbell County Seniors and 

Altavista EMS.   

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked if the meals tax from Wal-Mart was being budgeted. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised that the meals tax was being budgeted.   

 

Mr. Higginbotham stated it was brought up that once the park is put into the 

Town’s name, Council would consider keeping those funds. 

 

Mayor Mattox stated he did not recall that. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the decision has not been made on the park but he is 

working with Mr. Frank Rogers, Campbell County Administrator, to get this 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

accomplished and this is something Council could discuss.  He added currently 

the check for the County is dispersed in August or September.   

 

Mr. Emerson verified that the Campbell County Board of Supervisors cut funding 

to the Town from $50,000 to $25,000. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised this was correct. 

 

Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. George, motioned to schedule a public hearing on 

the FY2018 Budget and Capital Improvement Plan for Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 

7:00 p.m.   

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

 

d. Comprehensive Plan-Setting of Public Hearing 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Altavista Town Council was previously presented with 

the update to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan from the Altavista Planning 

Commission.  He stated staff is seeking authorization to proceed with the 

scheduling of a public hearing on the amended Town’s Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Mrs. Overbey, seconded by Mrs. Dalton, motioned to schedule public hearing on 

the amended Comprehensive Plan for Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.  

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

e. Cross Connection Control Ordinance-First Reading 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised at the March 28th Work Session, Council discussed 

proposed amendments to Chapter 78 of the Town Code relating to the Cross 

Connection Control Ordinance.  Council consented to setting a public hearing 

on the proposed ordinance amendments for Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 7:00 

p.m. 

 

Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. George, to schedule a public hearing on the 

proposed amendments to the Cross Connection Control Ordinance for 

Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:   Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

 

f. Planning Commission Report 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Planning Commission held public hearings at their 

meeting to receive comment from the public regarding amendments to the Town’s 

Zoning Ordinance and a rezoning application submitted by Mr. Mitch Hailey, 

owner of Altavista Appliance.  The application requested that the 600 block of 7th 

Street be removed from the Downtown Revitalization Overlay District (DRO) and 

revert to C2, General Commercial District.  Mr. Hailey is planning to rebuild the 

structure and use colored sheet metal for the exterior, which is not permitted by 

the architectural treatment code section for the DRO.  The Planning Commission 

recommends approval of these items. 

 

Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mrs. Overbey, motioned to set a public hearing 

Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 7:00 p.m. to receive comment from the public in regards 

to the proposed Zoning Ordinance amendments and the Rezoning Application for 

the 600 Block of 7th Street. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

g. Consideration of Purchase of Vehicle for Altavista Police Department 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised as discussed at the March Town Council Work Session, 

that the Altavista Police Department has had several vehicles removed from 

service for various reasons. The FY2017 Budget contained one (1) vehicle, which 

was purchased earlier this year.   Staff has reviewed the budget and has identified 

funds in the Police Department budget that could be utilized for the cost of an 

additional vehicle in FY2017, with funds also allocated from the State Forfeiture 

Fund.  The estimated cost of the new vehicle with all the components (lights, 

radio, cage, etc.) is $43,000.  The Chief has requested the purchase of a new Ford 

Explorer.  The discussion at the Work Session was whether the funds could be 

identified in FY2017 or whether to put a second vehicle in the draft FY2018 

Budget. He noted staff has identified funds within the departmental budget. 

 

Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Emerson, motioned to adopt staff’s request to allow 

staff, using existing departmental funds and State Forfeiture Funds, to purchase a 

new vehicle and required accessories at the estimated cost of $43,000.  

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked Chief Milnor why he would order a Ford Explorer. 

 

Chief Milnor responded the Ford Explorer would be consistent with the three 

already on the fleet, their reliability is better; overall the cost is not much more. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

 

 

h. Consideration of Request of Lynchburg Daily Bread to Use Town Property 

for Meal Distribution Point 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Town was contacted by Ms. Tracey Dixon, Executive 

Director of Lynchburg Daily Bread, regarding their need for a new space for 

distribution of meals to individuals in need every Monday and Thursday in 

Altavista.  They have been operating at DAWN (located behind the Altavista Fire 

Company building), and due to various factors they are seeking a new location.   

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised he met with Ms. Dixon and one of her associates on 

Thursday, April 6th and viewed their operation.  They serve the packaged meals 

directly to the people in their cars (drive-thru style).  They discussed alternative 

sites. Mr. Coggsdale proposed to allow Lynchburg Daily Bread to have a “trial 

period” of three months at the English Park parking lot adjacent to the boat ramp.  

They would set up at 10:45 a.m. and finish by 12:00 noon.  They would list the 

Town of Altavista as “Additional Insured”.  Lynchburg Daily Bread has served 

2,135 meals at the Altavista site from January 1, 2017 to April 3, 2017. They 

served 2,200 meals at their Altavista site from July 2016 to the end of December 

2016.   

 

Mrs. Dalton thanked Ms. Dixon for their work and added Council appreciates the 

fact that Lynchburg Daily Bread is willing to serve this area. 

 

Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Emerson, motioned to allow Lynchburg Daily 

Bread to use Town property for meal distribution as outlined for a “trial period” 

of three months.   

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 
 

 

10. Reports 

 

a. Town Manager’s Report  

 
    Booker Building  
 

  Preliminary Report submitted to Council in November. 

  Contacted USDA regarding potential planning grant. 

  Scheduling a visit to The Prizery in South Boston. 

 
 Strategic Planning Retreat 
 

Staff is working with finding an acceptable date for Council.  May want to set a date 
in August and proceed, this would allow Council members to “hold the date”. 

  Working with facilitator on creating a draft agenda. 
 

Mayor Mattox stated he is hoping to have the Retreat done before the next budget 
cycle.  He felt Council needs to prioritize spending and the objectives for the Town. 
 
Mrs. Dalton suggested looking at the months of August and September on a Work 
Session afternoon or a Wednesday. 

 

 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

 Comprehensive Plan Update 
 

Discussion on March Work Session 
Schedule date for Public Hearing of the Comprehensive Plan Update. 
 

 WWTP EOP – PCB Remediation 
 

  Working with Dr. Lowman in regards to an update on this study. 
 

Mr. Coggsdale advised Dr. Lowman will have an update available at the April 

25th, 2017 Work Session. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked what he is expecting from this. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale responded he did not know.   

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked if staff has heard from DEQ. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated typically DEQ is provided with an annual update.   
 

 Compensation/Classification Plan Study   & Personnel Policy Update 

 

Staff is working with the consultant based on Council’s feedback at the January 

Work Session. 

Staff is reviewing the Personnel Policy draft. 
 
 Staunton River RIFA 
 

Utility Study “kick off” meeting (Peed & Bortz) held on March 29th  

Attended meeting at Pittsylvania County with legal counsel regarding creation of 

authority documents. 
 
 Broadband Planning Study 
 

Staff is working with the consultant to analyze the “next steps”. 

Update to be provided at April 25th Town Council Work Session 

 
  Water Plant Projects 
 

Water Treatment Plant Electrical Updates project (Southern Air) Notice of Award 

issued. 

SCADA Phase I project (Moore’s Electric) underway.   

Water Model/GIS Mapping – Completed 

Dominion Effluent Reuse – Dominion is currently in spring outage maintenance 

mode and reports no additional progress on this item since last report. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham stated if we can get effluent water pumped to Dominion along 

with clean drinking water, we can avoid having to expand the Water Treatment 

Plant.  He felt a committee of Council was needed to push this with Dominion 

Virginia Power and go higher until an answer is received noting this has been 

drug out for at least a year.   

 

Mayor Mattox felt it would be staff’s duty to contact Dominion Virginia Power. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham did not feel staff had done anything; they haven’t gotten any 

results. 

 

Mayor Mattox stated staff is awaiting a reply from Dominion Virginia Power and 

felt as soon as a response is received staff will report to Council. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale noted this could be a great plan but until Dominion Virginia Power 

buys into it, it doesn’t matter. 

 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked who was talked to at Dominion Virginia Power. 

 

Mr. Fore stated he has spoken with an Environmental engineer but could not think 

of his name and advised he has been touching base with him once a month.  He 

noted a committee of engineers has been formed.  He stated the local engineers 

had made a decision not to do anything. Mr. Fore asked if the town could treat the 

water in an “effluent” way, which is acceptable to DEQ but not Dominion’s 

biological process.  He reported he has had a lot of communication with 

Dominion but none of it has been about Dominion being ready to take that water 

on.  He was told it is used in Hopewell, Virginia.   

 

Mr. Higginbotham stated this is two pronged; ask them to get water from the river 

when the river is running clean and the ideal situation is get them to accept the 

effluent water.  He stated staff should be able to go over somebody’s head; they 

are a beauracy like any other organization.  He felt it would be a win win for the 

town and for Dominion Virginia Power. 

 

Mr. Fore noted Dominion is in a contract with the Town of Altavista for five 

years that they will buy 600,000 gallons of water a day from the town. With this 

being a budget item, it is locked in for five years and he has to buy 75,000 gallons 

a day from Campbell County Utilities because of the contract. 

 

Mrs. Dalton stated this is a best-case scenario but until Dominion is ready to deal 

with this all the town can do is to continue to chat. 

 

Mr. Fore noted all of this would require DEQ permission; another hoop for the 

town to jump through if Dominion says yes. 

 

Mr. Emerson stated you would have to think that if this is a good option for 

Dominion and would save them lots of money they would get in a hurry to move 

this process forward.   

 

Mr. Coggsdale felt Mr. Fore had made good contact with Dominion Virginia 

Power. 

 

Mayor Mattox felt it was the consensus of Council that this is a good idea but felt 

we had to wait for a response from Dominion Virginia Power. 

 

b. Departmental Reports  

         

11. Informational Items/Late Arriving Matters 

 

a. Calendars-April/May 

 

12. Matters from Town Council 

 

Mr. Emerson asked if there were any updates on the boat ramp. 

 

Mr. Witt stated he had just closed out the grant for the recreational easement and 

should receive a check for this shortly.  Two engineering firms for the design have 

been interviewed.  He noted he is awaiting the Recreational Trails Program grant to 

open up. 

    

13. Closed Session 

 

I move that the Altavista Town Council convene in closed session in accordance with 

the provisions set out in the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended,  

 

Section 2.2-3711 (A)(3) regarding discussion or consideration of the acquisition of 

real property for a public purpose, or of the disposition of publicly held real property, 

where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position 

or negotiating strategy of the public body. 



Regular Council Meeting—April 11, 2017 

 

 

A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, and seconded by Mr. Emerson.  

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

      Council went into closed session at 8:00 P.M. 

  Notice was given that council was back in regular session 8:26 P.M. 

 

      FOLLOWING CLOSED SESSION: 

A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. Emerson, to adopt the      

certification of a closed meeting. 

 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED MEETING 

WHEREAS, the town council has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant to 

an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the provisions of The Virginia 

Freedom of Information Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia requires a certification by the        

town council that such closed meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia 

law; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the town council hereby certifies that, 

to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully 

exempted from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the 

closed meeting to which this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public 

business matters as were identified in the motion convening the closed meeting were 

heard, discussed or considered by the town council. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes  

     Mrs. Micki Brumfield  Yes 

Mrs. Beverley Dalton  Yes 

     Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes   

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 
 

14. Adjournment 
                        

      Mayor Mattox asked if there was anything else to bring before Council. 

 

Mayor Mattox introduced Ms. Emily Correa, Staunton River Memorial Library and 

Patrick Henry Memorial Library Librarian and welcomed her to Altavista. 

       

      The meeting was adjourned at 8:27 p.m. 

 

______________________________ 

       Michael E. Mattox, Mayor  

 

         ________________________________ 

       J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 25, 2017 

    

 

The work session of the Council of the Town of Altavista was held in the Council Chambers of 

the J.R. Burgess Municipal Building, 510 Seventh Street, on April 25, 2017 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

Council members 

 present:    Mayor Michael Mattox 

     Mrs. Beverley Dalton  

Mr. Tracy Emerson 

     Mr. Timothy George 

     Mr. Jay Higginbotham 

     Mrs. Tanya Overbey 

 

Council members  

absent:    Mrs. Micki Brumfield    

       

 Also present:   Mr. J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 

     Mr. Daniel Witt, Assistant Town Manager 

     Mrs. Tobie Shelton, Finance Director 

     Chief Mike Milnor, Altavista Police Department 

Mr. Dennis Jarvis, Economic Dev. Director 

Mr. Steve Bond, Wastewater Treatment Plant 

     Mr. John Eller, Town Attorney 

     Mrs. Mary Hall, Administration 

 

1. Mayor Mattox called the meeting to order and presided. 

 

2. A motion was made by Mrs. Dalton, seconded by Mr. George, to approve the agenda as 

presented. 

 

Motion carried:  

VOTE:    Mr. Michael Mattox  Yes 

     Mrs. Beverly Dalton  Yes 

Mr. Tracy Emerson  Yes 

Mr. Timothy George  Yes 

Mr. Jay Higginbotham Yes 

Mrs. Tanya Overbey  Yes 

 

3. Public Comments—Agenda Items Only 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to speak on anything listed on the agenda. 

 

Mrs. Carol Day, 1403 Bedford Avenue, approached Council requesting they read the 

material for the Purple Heart Community and make themselves aware of what will be 

required if it is passed.  

 

4. Introductions and Special Presentations 

 

a. 7th Street 

b. Charlotte Avenue/Alley Drainage 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised Mr. Earl Dickerson, Hurt and Proffitt would provide Council 

with an update on the 7th Street Storm Drainage and Charlotte Avenue/Alley 

Drainage. 

 

Mr. Dickerson advised Mr. Mike Wilson (also present) had done all the work in 

regards to the design for the two projects.  Mr. Dickerson referred to the 7th Street 

project and proposed removing the sidewalk from the alley to above the crosswalk at 

Town Hall, replace the alley driveway with concrete, add a drop inlet, and mill the 

asphalt in the parking area.  The sidewalk would have a slope to make the water drain 

towards the street away from the buildings.  He noted this would be a face down 

sidewalk.  The top of the curb would be 4 to 6 inches below where you would come 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 25, 2017 

out of each business.  To soften the slope, milling would need to start at the centerline 

of 7th Street.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked for an estimate to go to the centerline. 

 

Mr. Dickerson advised the $82,500 would cover the expense to mill to the centerline; 

$76,500 with a 15% contingence would cover the expense to mill the parking area. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked if a trench drain would be needed. 

 

Mr. Dickerson advised the concrete driveway would be the same height as the sidewalk. 

He felt the only water going down the alley would be what falls on the alley and from 

the downspouts.   

 

Mr. George stated he is not opposed to this proposal but questioned the thoughts of a 

trench drain in front of the store with the drainage problems. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated this is an option but the proposal is a more direct fix.  This 

proposal moves the drainage away from the buildings. 

 

Mr. Dickerson noted this option would require no maintenance by the town staff.   

 

Mayor Mattox asked if this would be eligible for highway funds 

 

Mr. Coggsdale noted it would be eligible for partial highway funds.  

 

Mr. Dickerson stated they are ready to go to bid when authorized to. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked for Council’s thoughts on milling to the middle of the street. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham felt it would make 7th Street look better. 

 

It was the consensus of Council to proceed with moving forward with bidding the 7th 

Street project to the centerline. 

 

Mr. Wilkerson presented a drawing of Charlotte Avenue and 5th Street and explained 

how they propose to correct the drainage problems in these areas. He noted this project 

has been designed to satisfy the 10-year storm event which is a standard used by the 

Virginia Department of Transportation. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham suggested going north on 5th Street to go deeper with the drain lines. 

 

Mr. Dickerson explained because of the flat area there is not much grade to work with; 

they had to design with a minimum fall of a half of a percent on the pipelines.  The 

elevation is not there.  He advised the construction cost is $141,130 with a 10% 

contingency.   

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked Mr. Dickerson if he could combine this project with the 7th 

Street project when bidding with options. 

 

Mr. Dickerson stated the 7th Street project will be a difficult project to bid; the concrete 

person will be the lead and the asphalt will be a subcontractor.  He stated it makes some 

sense to combine the two projects.   

 

Mrs. Dalton asked where the funds come from. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised funds would come from the General Fund. 

 

It was the consensus of Council to bid the two projects as one. 

 

 

 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 25, 2017 

 

 

5. Items for Discussion 

 

a. Purple Heart Community Consideration 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised recently Mr. Dennis Janiak with the “The Military Order 

of the Purple Heart” Chapter 1607 VA, approached staff about its interest in the 

town being designated a “Purple Heart” Community.  He presented Council with  

information about the goal of the designation and the conditions.  The conditions 

are related to the Town having signage indicating the designation, 

recognition/celebration of Purple Heart Day (August 7th) and other items that may 

be adopted by Town Council.  Mr. Coggsdale suggested if Council is interested in 

designating a “Purple Heart” Community that Mr. Janiak be invited to a future 

Council Regular Meeting or Work Session to give a brief presentation on the 

Purple Heart designation. 

 

It was the consensus of Council that this item be added to the June regular 

Council meeting. 

 

Mayor Mattox asked Mrs. Day to meeting with him so that they could discuss her 

concerns. 

 

b. Broadband Study/Implementation 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised through the assistance of a Virginia Telecommunications 

Planning Initiative (VATPI) grant from the Virginia Department of Housing and 

Community Development (DHCD), the Town hired Design Nine to conduct a 

study on Broadband Planning.   Dr. Cohill made a presentation on the study at the 

January Town Council Work Session. Mr. Coggsdale mentioned at that time, 

Council asked staff to keep this item on their radar.  He presented Council with a 

memo from Mr. Jarvis regarding an update with a revised cost for initial 

implementation.  Installation of a municipal broadband system is identified in the 

Town’s Capital Improvement Plan (FY2019).  Mr. Coggsdale advised a revised 

cost estimate and design plan; with Option 1 totaling $334,520.34 to cover 1.9 

miles of fiber installed with 50 potential customers connected. Option 2 totaling 

$269,010.97 to cover 1.3 miles of fiber installed with 45 potential customers 

connected.  This would be a cost savings of $65,510. 

 

Mrs. Dalton stated we are in a world of technology, things move quickly in the 

way of moving things.  At a recent Legislative breakfast, Senator Steve Newman 

referred to 5G and she asked if the town was lagging in the latest technology and 

is the cutting edge not available to the town yet? 

 

Mr. Jarvis stated he has not totally immersed himself in the 5G wireless, which is 

the next wave.  He did not share Senator Newman’s enthusiasm for what the 5G 

means for rural Virginia; what it does mean for the metro area it will roll out 

much quicker.  He noted because of our geography there is cellular limitations.    

 

Mrs. Dalton asked if Design Nine’s recommendation is behind the times. 

 

Mr. Jarvis stated that it was not.   

 

Mrs. Dalton asked if it was possible to look for grants to help with the cost. 

 

Mr. Jarvis mentioned an error in his CIP as he did not plan to put the funds for 

this project two years out.  He referred to Design Nine’s revised design limiting 

the outlay of fiber by 6 tenths of a mile and reducing the cost by $65,510.  He 

noted there are opportunities depending on budget cycle and state and federal 

grant allocations.  VHCD and VHA has funding initiatives that can be looked at.   



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 25, 2017 

He noted the reduction of fiber would be taken off of 7th Street and Amherst 

Avenue.  He told Council if they are directing him to move forward, he will work 

with Mr. Gary Christie, Region 2000, start identifying some sources and the 

process of giving them an overview of the potential sources.   

 

Mrs. Dalton thought this was a very important infrastructure and felt Council 

needs to take charge and pursue. 

 

Mrs. Overbey stated she is very much in favor of broadband and feels it is vital to 

Economic Development.  She was concerned about the layout and stated she did 

not see this providing a lot on the residential side.  She would like to see more 

being done on the residential side.  She questioned the stretch from Franklin to 

Pittsylvania Avenue to the Lane Furniture property and stated this passes by two 

car lots that have only cars parked on them and a long stretch that would have no 

one connecting.  She asked if there was a more efficient way to get to the Lane 

property without laying all the fiber in a dead zone.   

 

Mr. Coggsdale felt the issue was the railroad. 

 

Mr. Jarvis stated if an Option 3 is needed, he could go back to Dr. Cohill and his 

staff for a different layout.  He noted this is not hitting residential areas because 

we are providing infrastructure to the greater Altavista area.  He stated when 

looking at the fiber makeup, this would be providing service to residential areas as 

well. 

 

Mrs. Dalton confirmed the presented layout was merely a backbone of the 

infrastructure. 

 

Mr. Jarvis stated this infrastructure would enhance the value of the properties 

downtown.   

  

Mrs. Overbey asked if the layout shows the fiber coming down Main Street and 

would we dig up what we just put down. 

 

Mr. George recalled being told the fiber would go down the alleys.   

 

Mr. Jarvis stated we would not dig up the pavement on Main Street. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised based on some of the comments, they would work on 

defining, gather more information and bring back an update in a few months.  

 

Mayor Mattox stated he knew this was the beginning and we would be serving 70 

customers and with more people on that tower, what would be the broadband 

capacity at 3:00 p.m. when kids are home from school and on the internet?  Will it 

be sufficient? 

 

Mr. Jarvis stated when the surveys were completed, it was identified not everyone 

uses CenturyLink, Comcast, or nTelos.  There were 15 to 20 providers hit on the 

survey.  He felt if it would be a good thing if the speed was slower because of a 

greater number of customers. 

 

Mayor Mattox stated the first goal is to have enough broadband to service the 

community and a provider that is willing to take that high speed from the hub to 

the house instead of going through towers.   

 

Mr. Jarvis stated we are one of the most wired communities in all of the 

Commonwealth because of what we are servicing.  Wireless is a way to provide 

more service to a larger spectrum of the community.   

 

Mayor Mattox did not feel the towers were going to serve the needs of the 

community.   



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 25, 2017 

Council asked staff to move forward with seeking grants and report back to 

Council with updates. 

 

c. Use of Parks for “Gus the Bus” Program 

 

Mr. Coggsdale provided Council with an email from Mrs. Jane Green, Altavista 

Elementary School Librarian, concerning a summer program that “combats 

summer learning loss and food scarcity” with children in Altavista.  She is 

requesting use of areas at the Avondale Park and the Leonard Coleman Park 

(School/15th Streets) for the program.   He noted this is the same request as last 

year.   

 

It was the consensus of Council to place this item on the May Regular Town 

Council Meeting Consensus Agenda. 

 

 

d. IALR Update—PCB Project Dr. Lowman 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the Institute of Advanced Learning and Research (IALR) 

in Danville has been conducting research studies for PCB remediation efforts 

associated with the Town’s Emergency Overflow Pond (EOP).  He presented 

Council with the “Final Report” provided by Dr. Lowman. 

 

Mrs. Dalton questioned if this is the end of Dr. Lowman’s study. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised this is the end of Dr. Lowman’s two-season study on the 

pots.   

 

Mrs. Dalton felt this study should be used when communicating with the 

regulatory body; she asked if Dr. Lowman has statistically factored in what might 

be the effective natural attenuation.  She noted she did not see this in Dr. 

Lowman’s data.  

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated it would be covered in the “Soil Only” segment. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham stated Dr. Lowman and Dr. Sowers are mixing and if left alone 

there is still a “peanut butter” layer on the bottom.   

 

Mr. George referred to previous conversations about advice from an 

Environmental Attorney and asked Mr. Coggsdale if he had gotten in touch with 

anyone. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated he and Dr. Lowman has discussed this and Dr. Lowman has 

a name that he will get in touch with. 

 

e. Classification/Compensation Study Adoption/Implementation 

 

Mr. Coggsdale presented Council with the latest update on the 

Classification/Compensation Study.  The Town contracted with Springsted to 

conduct a Classification and Compensation Study, which could be used as a tool 

to update the Town’s Compensation Plan.  The initial report was presented to 

Town Council at their January 2017 Work Session and staff has been working 

with the consultant to make several modifications to the study and the report. 

The study reviewed the Classifications and the Class Descriptions and presented 

new Classifications and Class Descriptions for the Town’s implementation.   

Springsted also evaluated the Towns positions with other comparable agencies in 

development of the proposed classification and compensation plan.   Staff is 

continuing to work with the consultant on development of a Merit Based 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 25, 2017 

Performance System; as well as staff training so that they can develop, maintain 

and update the plan. 

 

The consultant proposed several different options for implementation, with 

Option 3 being their recommendation.  Option 3 would bring all of the 

employees’ salaries to the minimum of their proposed grade on the proposed scale 

and provide for an adjustment based on the number of years of service in their 

current position.  The years of service component assists in addressing the 

“compression” issue between employees in the same positions but with varying 

experience in those positions.  Staff would like to slightly modify the Option 3 

proposal and provide any employee that would receive less than a 2% increase 

under the plan, with a 2% increase.   Based on the latest review, the 

implementation of the proposed plan, utilizing Option 3 (with staff’s 

modification), would be a total annual cost of approximately $110,000.  The total 

estimated cost of this option including benefits would be less than $133,000, 

which is provided for in the FY2018 Proposed Budget.   He noted in the updated 

plan some part time positions were removed so it is hard to compare the two 

studies.  He saw a little impact but not a huge change.   

 

Mr. Higginbotham asked if the town of Woodstock was still in the survey. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised the towns of Woodstock and Ashland were removed.  

Christiansburg and Farmville were left in the study based on discussions at the 

previous meetings.   

 

Mr. George asked in the future would this give Supervisors the authority to give 

some a raise and leave others where they are. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised staff would be working on the merit base performance 

system.   

 

Mr. George asked would this do away with the COLA. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated it could, it would be however Council deems to work that 

out. 

 

Mrs. Dalton stated she has seen it work in other places where Council would give 

an overall percentage of allotment for improvements and town manager is in 

charge with the use of evaluations, which may be a more equitable format, and 

then everybody gets the same. 

 

Mr. Emerson asked in the course of a year what would 2% equals to. 

 

Mrs. Shelton advised this would be approximately $60,000 for salaries. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated the new job descriptions and all those options would need to 

be accepted and then the implementation if Council so chooses. 

 

Mr. Higginbotham questioned the recently updated study, noting the 

implementation is listed as $94,000. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised some part time positions were removed from the study. 

 

Mayor Mattox noted the cost of living raise would not be given if the 

compensation study is implemented.  He stated something that has concerned him 

with the COLA, in his mind the cost of living is the cost of a family to pay their 

bills.  If someone is making $30,000 per year at 2% that is only $600; someone 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 25, 2017 

making $100,000 a year would see an increase of $2,000.  Mayor Mattox felt this 

creates expansion where the upper level’s pay goes up faster than the ones at the 

lower level.  

 

Mr. George asked what the alternatives would be. 

 

Mayor Mattox stated he did not know if there was an alternative but asked staff to 

research. 

 

Mr. Emerson stated in his mind it was simple math to take the amount that 

everyone would get and divide equally among all the employees.   

 

Mayor Mattox felt this would prevent the expansion of salaries because the person 

making $30,000 wages is not increasing as fast as the person making $100,000 is.   

 

Mr. Coggsdale stated not dollar amount but percentage. 

 

Mayor Mattox said the dollar amount compounds every year with the increase. 

 

Mr. Emerson suggested taking the pool of money dividing by employees; 

everyone would get the same raise.   

 

Mrs. Overbey felt this was a separate discussion from this discussion.   

 

Mrs. Dalton stated this is a piece of the puzzle and noted what is wanted is to pay 

people fairly for what they do.  She felt the study will help Council to determine 

what fair is and this is why they have this tool.   

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised this item is included in the proposed FY2018 budget.  The 

proposed FY2018 Budget is scheduled for a public hearing on May 9th at the 

Regular Town Council meeting. 

 

f. Delinquent Utility Accounts-5 Year Write Off 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised annually staff presents to Town Council a request to write 

off delinquent utility accounts that are five years old and those of deceased 

individuals.  The total amount of the write-off request is $1,704.29.     

 

It was the consensus of Council to add this item to the May Town Council 

Consent Agenda. 

 

6. Public Comments 

 

Mayor Mattox asked if anyone would like to comment on anything not listed on the 

agenda. 

 

No one came forward. 

 

Mr. Emerson asked what the timeframe is for taking over the County’s portion of English 

Park. 

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised he would follow up with the County Administrator.   

 

Mr. Emerson asked if there were any updates on the Boat Ramp. 

 

Mr. Witt advised he has chosen an Engineering Firm and he has passed the contract on to 

the Town Attorney for review.  He is planning a “Kick-off” meeting with Mr. Brian 

Stokes, Campbell County Environmental Manager.   

 



 

COUNCIL WORK SESSION APRIL 25, 2017 

 

 

Mr. Emerson asked if it had been 12 months since the Board of Supervisors were asked 

about in kind services.  

 

Mr. Coggsdale advised he would verify this information. 

 

Mr. Emerson suggested approaching the County again for these services. 

 

Mr. George asked if the two fields as you enter into the County portion could be added to 

the mowing cycle because they are usable.   

 

7. Closed Session 

 

8. Adjournment 

             

Mayor Mattox adjourned the meeting at 6:18 p.m. 

 

 

______________________________ 

                 Michael E. Mattox, Mayor 

 

_______________________________________ 

         J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Clerk 

 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Monthly Financial Reports │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 Attached are the following Financial Reports: 

 

 Invoices paid during the month 

 Revenue & Expenditure Reports 

 Reserve Balance/Investment Report 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Acceptance   

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to accept the monthly financial reports as 
presented.   

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Invoices, Revenue & Expenditure Reports, Reserve Balance/   
Investment Report 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7b │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2b │ 



ALL CHECKS REGISTER                                ACCOUNTING PERIOD 11/2017 

TOWN OF ALTAVISTA                           FROM: 04/01/2017  TO: 04/30/2017 

 

CHECK    VENDOR VENDOR                               CHECK             CHECK 

   NO        NO   NAME                                DATE            AMOUNT 

 

  36026       6 ALTAVISTA AREA YMCA             04/07/2017         25,000.00  

  36027     303 ALTAVISTA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE   04/07/2017          5,000.00  

  36028     170 ALTAVISTA ON TRACK              04/07/2017          1,250.00  

  36029      11 AVOCA                           04/07/2017         14,275.00  

  36030     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             04/07/2017            385.00  

  36031      37 ELECOM INC                      04/07/2017            419.52  

  36032      20 J JOHNSON ELLER JR              04/07/2017          2,267.00  

  36033      50 GRETNA TIRE INC                 04/07/2017          1,065.14  

  36034      52 HACH COMPANY                    04/07/2017         55,498.58  

  36035       1 HITS INC                        04/07/2017            250.00  

  36036      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  04/07/2017            675.00  

  36037     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  04/07/2017          2,500.00  

  36038     300 NAPA AUTO PARTS                 04/07/2017            239.52  

  36039     454 O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC         04/07/2017            134.57  

  36040      67 ORKIN PEST CONTROL LLC          04/07/2017            269.34  

  36041     733 MARY STONE                      04/07/2017             48.00  

  36042       1 TOBIE SHELTON                   04/07/2017              5.27  

  36043      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  04/07/2017            253.15  

  36044      35 TREASURER OF VA/VITA            04/07/2017             17.51  

  36045     515 DALE TYREE JR                   04/07/2017          1,175.00  

  36046      92 UNIFIRST CORP                   04/07/2017          2,448.52  

  36047      95 UNITED WAY OF CENTRAL VA        04/07/2017            114.00  

  36048     136 USABLUEBOOK                     04/07/2017          5,668.62  

  36049     756 WAGEWORKS INC                   04/07/2017            108.55  

  36050       9 AFLAC                           04/21/2017          2,014.65  

  36051      91 ANTHEM BLUE CROSS/BLUE SHIELD   04/21/2017         35,544.00  

  36052     103 BEACON CREDIT UNION             04/21/2017            385.00  

  36053     461 KATHI BOGERT                    04/21/2017            862.68  

  36054     294 BUSINESS CARD                   04/21/2017         14,557.09  

  36055      16 CAMPBELL COUNTY UTILITIES & SE  04/21/2017          4,495.36  

  36056     536 CAROLINA METER & SUPPLY         04/21/2017          3,980.00  

  36057     574 CHRISTOPHER MICALE, TRUSTEE     04/21/2017            125.00  

  36058     526 DAVENPORT ENERGY INC            04/21/2017            188.04  

  36059      36 DOMINION VIRGINIA POWER         04/21/2017         41,274.01  

  36060     301 ENGLISH'S LLC                   04/21/2017          1,143.37  

  36061     118 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC #75    04/21/2017            488.45  

  36062 9999999 FRAZIER GREG S                  04/21/2017            267.60  

  36063     622 HEYWARD SERVICES INC            04/21/2017            296.32  

  36064      57 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST-457 #304  04/21/2017            675.00  

  36065     566 INTEGRATED TECHNOLOGY GROUP IN  04/21/2017            932.68  

  36066     712 JACK MOORE & ASSOCIATES INC     04/21/2017          1,850.00  

  36067     773 JIMMY DON JOHNSON               04/21/2017          1,950.00  

  36068     172 LLOYD ELECTRIC COMPANY INC      04/21/2017          2,627.86  

  36069     218 MINNESOTA LIFE                  04/21/2017            165.34  

  36070     765 PRIVIA MEDICAL GROUP LLC        04/21/2017            305.00  

  36071     327 PUBLIC AGENCY TRAINING COUNCIL  04/21/2017            325.00  

  36072     379 REI CONSULTANTS INC             04/21/2017          1,110.60  

  36073     510 RIVER VALLEY RESOURCES LLC      04/21/2017            653.90  

  36074     504 SAFE SPACES LLC                 04/21/2017            173.97  

  36075      85 TREASURER OF VA /CHILD SUPPORT  04/21/2017            253.15  

  36076     101 VIRGINIA EMPLOYMENT COMMISSION  04/21/2017          4,017.48  



  36077     110 VUPS INC                        04/21/2017             66.15  

  36078     772 WEL INC                         04/21/2017          1,825.00  

  36079 9999998 WOMACK PUBLISHING               04/21/2017            150.00  

  36080     116 XEROX CORP                      04/21/2017            261.82  

  36081     128 ADAMS CONSTRUCTION CO           04/27/2017          3,000.00  

  36082      84 ALTAVISTA JOURNAL               04/27/2017          2,682.73  

  36083 9999999 ANITA FREEMAN                   04/27/2017            101.76  

  36084     706 BLAIR MARKETING                 04/27/2017          2,372.88  

  36085       4 BOXLEY AGGREGATES               04/27/2017          3,731.44  

  36086      12 BRENNTAG MID-SOUTH INC          04/27/2017          2,332.00  

  36087     427 CENTURYLINK                     04/27/2017          1,797.30  

  36088     145 CHANDLER CONCRETE CO INC        04/27/2017            112.00  

  36089 9999999 COLEMAN NICHOLAS B              04/27/2017             35.62  

  36090      32 CONTROL EQUIPMENT CO INC        04/27/2017             24.50  

  36091 9999999 DEYERLE RENNETTE J              04/27/2017             35.80  

  36092      41 FISHER SCIENTIFIC               04/27/2017          2,000.63  

  36093      52 HACH COMPANY                    04/27/2017          5,775.71  

  36094      58 INSTRUMENTATION SERVICES INC    04/27/2017            708.00  

  36095       1 JAMES WILLIAMS                  04/27/2017             40.00  

  36096     533 LYNN KIRBY                      04/27/2017            225.00  

  36097 9999999 LERETA/CENTRAL REFUNDS          04/27/2017             42.84  

  36098 9999999 MOON PAULA DONITA               04/27/2017             25.26  

  36099     423 NTELOS                          04/27/2017            210.13  

  36100     450 REGION 2000                     04/27/2017            140.00  

  36101      76 RYDIN DECAL                     04/27/2017            340.87  

  36102       1 SHANNON HOWELL                  04/27/2017             50.00  

  36103      80 SOUTHSIDE ELECTRIC COOP         04/27/2017            984.55  

  36104     778 SPRINT                          04/27/2017            999.68  

  36105     117 SPS VAR LLC                     04/27/2017            245.00  

  36106       1 TOM FORE                        04/27/2017            100.00  

  36107     357 TOMMY MERRICKS                  04/27/2017          3,890.00  

  36108 9999999 TUCK DALLAS CLAYTON             04/27/2017             67.69  

  36109     601 VACORP                          04/27/2017            146.70  

  36110 9999999 WESTBROOK SUSAN ACKERMAN        04/27/2017             31.60  

  36111     658 WKDE-FM                         04/27/2017             50.00  

  36112     700 WOODARD & CURRAN                04/27/2017          2,550.00  

 

   NO. OF CHECKS:    87                      TOTAL CHECKS         276,881.50 

 













































Town of Altavista

Grand Total of all Investments and Deposits 17,541,225.78$   

Balance as of April 30, 2017 Reserve Policy

Non-Specific

Green Hill Cemetery 577,135.76

General Fund Reserves

Capital Improvement Program Reserves 3,529,677.16

Altavista EDA Funding 261,003.28 *

261,003.28

Enterprise Fund Reserves

Capital Improvement Program Reserves 234,336.34
PCB Remediation 569,707.59

Community Improvement Reserve 0.00

Police Federal 2,893.32

Police State 18,547.85

Public Funds Money Market Accounts 11,936,756.96

Operating Checking Account (Reconciled Balance) 411,167.52

DESIGNATED FUNDS 1,840,455.32

15,700,770.46 General Enterprise Total

Reserve Policy Funds (This figure changes annually w/audit) -6,663,417.00 Policy $ 5,202,534 1,460,883 6,663,417
UNDESIGNATED FUNDS 9,037,353.46

NOTES: Earmarked for Final Downtown Map-21 Project -121,600.00

ED rem balance of $35,000(website and marketing) -6,240.00

FY 2016 Highway Carryover of Funds -840,583.54

Earmarked for AOT No Interest Loan Program -40,000.00

"Pop-Up" Altavista Funding -10,000.00

Accrued Liability -153,155.86

Funds earmarked for items not completed during prior FY -342,000.00

Project Funds -117,920.90

Apprvd 9/22/15

Concept presented at work session for improvements to 

electrical at WTP and construction of new bldg to house 

electric panels

-537,500.00

Canoe Launch Site -135,350.00

Dominion Service Line -86,834.47

Transfer of excess funds from Operating Acct. to MM -1,455,000.00

Budget CIP Items Earmarked for Future Purchase -285,500.00

2/14/2017 H & P Engineering Fees for Charlotte Ave. drainage -17,142.00
UNDESIGNATED RESERVE FUND BALANCE 4,905,668.69



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Use of Parks for “Gus the Bus” program │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

Attached is an email from Mrs. Jane Green, Altavista Elementary School Librarian, concerning a 
summer program that “combats summer learning loss and food scarcity” with children in Altavista.  
She is requesting use of areas at the Avondale Park and the Leonard Coleman Park (School/15th 
Streets) for the program.   This is the same request as last year. 

 

This item was discussed at the April 25th Town Council Work Session with the consensus of placing it on the 
May 9th Town Council Regular Meeting for approval. 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval of the request.  

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the request as presented.   

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Email (Jane Green); Map showing locations 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  DNW 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7c │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2c │ 



From: Jane Green [mailto:jgreen@campbell.k12.va.us]  
Sent: Sunday, March 26, 2017 4:32 PM 
To: Daniel Witt <dnwitt@altavistava.gov> 
Subject: Gus the Bus! 

 

Hi Dan, 

 

We are gearing up for another summer of Gus the Bus!  We have a few hurdles to overcome -- 

like getting Gus in good enough shape to make the trips.  But either way, we still want to have 

our summer program to help combat summer learning loss and food scarcity with our children of 

Altavista.  May we have permission again to use the park at Avondale and 14th St. and the 

Coleman Memorial Park?  They are both such good locations, and lovely parks. 

 

We will begin after school is out in June and continue until school starts in August. 

 

Thanks, 

Jane 

 

 

--  
Jane Green 
Librarian, Altavista Elementary School 
Campbell County Schools 
2190 Lynch Mill Road 
Altavista, VA  24517 
434-369-5665 

 

mailto:jgreen@campbell.k12.va.us
mailto:dnwitt@altavistava.gov


GUS the Bus Location Requests 

 

 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ Consent Agenda │ 

Subject Title:   │ Delinquent Utility Account Write-Offs │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Annually staff presents to Town Council a request to write off delinquent utility accounts that are 
five years old and those of deceased individuals.  The total amount of the write-off request is 
$1,704.29. 

 

This item was discussed at the April 25th Town Council Work Session with the consensus of placing it on the 
May 9th Town Council Regular Meeting for approval. 

 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval  

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the annual Delinquent Utility 
Account Write-Offs, as presented, in the amount of $1,704.29. 

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Staff Memo; Delinquent Account list 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

 

 

 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 7d │ 

Attachment #:  │ 2d │ 



 

DATE:  April 18, 2017 

MEMO TO: Waverly Coggsdale 

FROM:  Tobie Shelton 

RE:  Delinquent Water and Sewer Accounts 

Attached is a listing of delinquent water and sewer accounts which are over five years old.  Our 
efforts to collect the delinquent billings have been unsuccessful.  Annually we request Council 
to consider writing off and adjusting our financial records. 
 
We have fifteen accounts over five years old totaling $1,621.77; and two accounts for deceased 
individuals totaling $82.52.  The total write-off proposal is $1,704.29.     
 
I respectfully request Council’s approval to write-off.  We would like to clear these outstanding 
invoices within the current fiscal year.  
 
Thank You. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ACCOUNTS OVER FIVE YEARS OLD

Name Date Account Closed Amount Past Due

Altisource 12/14/2011 9.00$                                                  

Jason Baldwin 9/7/2011 88.58$                                               

Michelle Waller Coleman 8/15/2011 653.63$                                             

Karlton Davis 11/8/2011 55.63$                                               

Jacqueline D. Elliott 8/5/2011 15.54$                                               

Dewey Hendricks 7/6/2011 15.26$                                               

Susan Irby 8/18/2011 30.20$                                               

Roger Lambert 8/9/2011 177.86$                                             

Melinda Fox 9/6/2011 47.56$                                               

Tamara Nowlin 9/23/2011 69.19$                                               

Ruby J's 3/16/2009 75.74$                                               

Goldie B. Taylor 7/12/2011 8.55$                                                  

Joanne Whiteside 10/17/2011 40.65$                                               

Everette Wood 9/15/2011 119.74$                                             

Kaleb Woods 10/17/2011 214.64$                                             

Sub-total 1,621.77$                                         

DECEASED INDIVIDUALS

Name Date Account Closed Amount Past Due

Lula Emerson 7/10/2013 14.45$                                               

Mary Coffer 9/14/2012 68.07$                                               

Sub-total 82.52$                                               

GRAND TOTAL 1,704.29$                                         

PROPOSED WRITE OFF

DELINQUENT WATER & SEWER ACCOUNTS

April 25, 2017

 
   



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ PUBLIC HEARINGS │ 

Subject Title:   │ FY2018 Budget and Capital Improvement Program (FY2018-2022) │  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Tonight will be an opportunity for the public to comment on the Proposed FY2018 Budget and Proposed 
FY2018-2022 Capital Improvement Program (CIP).  Following tonight’s public hearing, Town Council 
will have an opportunity to consider the comments before final adoption of the budget.  Should Council 
have items that they need to discuss, the May 23rd Town Council Work Session can be utilized for that 
purpose.  Staff will be seeking adoption of the Budget and CIP at the Regular Meeting of Town Council 
on June 13, 2017. 

 

Based on past discussion by Town Council, the total advertised budget overview is: 

 

REVENUE 

 General Fund Revenue (estimate)  $ 4,604,800 

 Enterprise Fund Revenue (estimate)  $ 4,865,910 

Highway Maintenance Fund (estimate)  $    861,650 

 Cemetery Fund (estimate)   $      28,000 

 TOTAL REVENUE (estimate):  $10,361,060   

 

EXPENDITURES 

 General Fund Expenditures   $ 4,469,310 

 Enterprise Fund Expenditures   $ 4,865,910 

 Highway Maintenance Expenditures  $    861,850 

 Cemetery Fund Expenditures   $      57,400 

 Transfer to General Fund Reserves  $      65,000 

 Transfer to Gen. Fund Reserve (Surplus) $      41,590 

 TOTAL EXPENDITURES:   $10,361,060 

 

 

 

Agenda Item #:   │ 8a │ 

Attachment #:  │ 3 │ 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

 

 

The proposed budget is based on NO CHANGE to the tax rates nor the utility rates.  To balance the 
budget, the Enterprise Fund requires a “transfer in” of $1,199,010 from the Enterprise Fund Reserves. 

 

There is no proposed increase to the Utility Rates (Water & Sewer) in the proposed budget. 

 

The Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for FY2018 – FY 2022 totals $13,294,740; the FY2018 Capital 
Improvement Program items/projects represent $2,795,420 of the total and is included in the Proposed 
FY2018 Budget. 

 

Following the Public Hearing, Council may direct staff to make changes to the Budget and/or CIP or refer 
discussion to the May Town Council Work Session, if either is warranted. 

 

NO MOTIONS WILL BE NEEDED AT THIS TIME IN REGARD TO ADOPTION OF THE 
FY2018 BUDGET AND/OR THE FY2018 – 2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
(CIP).  OFFICIAL ADOPTION IS SCHEDULED FOR COUNCIL’s REGULAR MEETING 
ON TUESDAY, JUNE 13, 2017. 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  FY2018 Budget Overview; Notice of Public Hearing; Staff Memo 
regarding Budget Revisions 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:  TCS 

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

 

 

     



 

2018 PROPOSED BUDGET OVERVIEW 
 

Total Expenditures:  $10,361,060 

(Includes transfers to GF Reserves of $106,590; $41,590 

is surplus) 

 

 

Total Revenue:  $8,907,350 

Transfers: $1,453,710 ($97,700 – General; $1,356,010 – 

Enterprise) 

TOTAL:  $10,361,060 

 

 

Real Estate Rate:  $0.08 per $100 of assessed value 

Personal Property Rate:  $2.00 per $100 of assessed value 

 

 

Utility Rates:             

          Water:  Business & Residential - $2.18 per 1,000 gallons 

  Industrial - $2.14 per 1,000 gallons 

  Town of Hurt - $3.27 per 1,000 gallons 

  Outside of Town - $4.36 per 1,000 gallons 

 

          Sewer:  Business & Residential - $3.07 per 1,000 gallons 

  Industrial - $3.14 per 1,000 gallons 

  Town of Hurt - $3.07 per 1,000 gallons 

 

 

Meals Tax Rate:  7% 

Cigarette Tax Rate:  $0.27 per pack 

Lodging Tax Rate:  5.5% 

 

 

BPOL Tax Rates:  (Rate per $100 of gross receipts) 
 
Contractors   $0.03 up to $200,000;  

$0.01 in excess of $200,000 
 

Retailers   $0.0425 
 
Financial, Real Estate  $0.0425 
& Professional 



 

Personal Services, Repair $0.06 
 
Wholesalers   $0.0175 
 
Wholesale Peddlers  $0.0175 
 
Commission Merchant  $0.06 
 
Direct Sellers   $0.0175 
sales under $4,000 
 
Direct Sellers   $0.055 
sales over $4,000 
 
Peddlers   $125 
 
Itinerant Merchant  $25 
edible, perishable goods 
 
Itinerant Merchant  $125 
nonperishable goods 
 
Carnivals, Circus  $100 per day; 
    $500 per week 
 
Fortunetellers   $500 
 
Savings Institutions/State $25 
Chartered credit unions 
 
Photographers, out of town $15 
 
Operators, coin operated $87.50 for less than 10  
Machines   machines; $100 for 10 or  
    machines plus $0.18 
 
Minimum License  $15 
 

 

Capital Improvement Program 

FY2018 Expenditures:  $2,795,420  

FY2018 – 2022 Expenditures:  $13,294,740 

 

 

 



 

TOWN OF ALTAVISTA 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

FY 2018 BUDGET 

 

The Town Council of the Town of Altavista will hold a Public Hearing at its regular 

meeting on Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 7:00 P.M. in the Council Chambers of the 

Municipal Building, 510 7th Street.  The purpose of this Public Hearing will be to hear 

comments from the citizens of Altavista on the proposed budget and tax rate for the 

Fiscal Year 2018. 

ESTIMATED REVENUE 

 

 

  General Fund 

   Real Estate Tax 

 

217,500 

   Public Service Corporation Taxes 

 

99,600 

   Personal Property Taxes 

 

1,938,700 

   Other Local Taxes 

 

1,704,700 

   Permits and Fees 

 

1,000 

   Fines and Forfeitures 

 

9,500 

   Use of Money and Property 

 

178,200 

   Charges for Service 

 

9,100 

   Donations, Receipts and Transfers 

 

98,000 

   Intergovernmental 

 

348,500 

General Fund Total: 

 

 

$4,604,800 

    Enterprise Fund (Water & Sewer) 

     Service Charges   3,449,700 

   Interest   4,500 

   Connection Fees   5,200 

   Miscellaneous, Grants & Transfers   1,249,510 

   CIP Reserves    157,000 

 

 Enterprise Fund Total:                       $4,865,910  
 

 Highway Maintenance Fund                      $861,650 

 Cemetery Fund               $28,500 

 

REVENUE GRAND TOTAL:                          $10,361,060 

 

 

 



 

 

 

PROPOSED OPERATING EXPENDITURES 

           

Council / Planning Commission 

 

62,200 

Administrative Department   

 

923,800 

Police Department 

 

1,024,100 

Public Works 

 

1,760,660 

Street & Highway Maintenance 

 

861,850 

Water Department 

 

2,547,270 

Wastewater Department 

 

2,318,640 

Green Hill Cemetery 

 

32,400 

Non Departmental 

 

308,550 

Transit Department 

 

160,950 

Economic Development  173,150 

Main Street  55,900 

Transfer to Cemetery Reserves  25,000 

Transfer to General Fund Reserves  65,000 

Transfer to General Fund Reserves – Surplus  41,590 

Total Proposed Operating Expenses  $10,361,060 

 

        

 

 

PROPOSED CAPITAL OUTLAY 

   

Water Plant Equipment 

 

657,270 

Wastewater Treatment Plant Equipment 

 

914,440 

Public Works Department Equipment 

 

711,360 

State Highway Funding 

 

260,850 

Police Department Equipment 

 

80,000 

Council  35,000 

Administration Department Equipment 

 

38,500 

Transit Department  

 

64,000 

Economic Development 

 

34,000 

Total Proposed Capital Outlay  $2,795,420 

 

    

 

 

               

 



 

 

 

PROPOSED TAX RATE – TOWN OF ALTAVISTA 

2017 REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY 

 

The 2017 levy on all taxable real estate located in the Town of Altavista shall be 8 cents 

($0.08) on every One Hundred Dollars ($100.00) of value of said real estate. On all 

taxable tangible personal property, including machinery and tools, except household 

goods and personal effects as set forth in Virginia Code Section 58.1-3504 located in said 

town on January 1, 2015 (or taxable by said town as provided in Virginia Code Section 

58.1-3511), there shall be a levy of Two Dollars ($2.00) on every One Hundred Dollars 

($100.00) of value of said personal property.  On all Bank and Trust Companies located 

within the Town of Altavista, there shall be levied a tax on the net capital of the bank as 

set forth in Section 58.1-1209 and Section 58.1-1211 of the Code of Virginia. 

 

Tobie Shelton /Treasurer 

 

 

 



 

 

TOWN OF ALTAVISTA 

 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (FY2018-2022) 
 

The Town Council of Altavista will hold a Public Hearing at its regular meeting on 

Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 7:00 P. M. in the Council Chambers of the Municipal Building, 

510 7th Street.  The purpose of this Public Hearing will be to hear comments from the 

citizens of Altavista on proposed Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for FY 2018 and 

projected CIP projects for fiscal years 2018-2022.  Following is a summary of the total 

expenditures covering fiscal years 2018-2022: 

 

Total CIP projects for FY2018 - (Funded Projects)                 $  2,795,420 

Total CIP projects for FY2019 - FY2022                             $10,499,320 

Total CIP projects for next five (5) years                  $13,294,740 

 

Funding for the FY2018 CIP projects include $765,160, General Fund; $260,850 

Highway Fund; $1,416,710 Enterprise Fund; $100,000 Grants; $252,700 CIP Reserves.  

The total expenditures for FY2019-2022 are for planning purposes only.   

 

Dan Witt 

Assistant Town Manager 

Town of Altavista 

 



 

Date:           April 7, 2017

To:               Mayor Mattox and Members of Council        

From:         Tobie Shelton

Subject:    Changes to FY 2018 Proposed Budget

Change to
Description of Change Budget

GENERAL FUND
Added 3% increase to Town Manager's salary (Administration) 2,700.00$      

decreased 50.18 General Liability accounts by $5,700 and increased 50.10 Property insurance accounts -$                
by $5,700.  (All Departments)

Added $31,000 to upgrade Shreve Park bathrooms (Public Works) 31,000.00$    

Added 1,000 to help with AOT Anniversary expenses (Non-Departmental) 1,000.00$      

Added $100,000 for piece of equipment to maintain ROW (Public Works) 20,000.00$    

Added Rt 43 Storm Water Construction (Public Works) 110,710.00$ 

TOTAL 165,410.00$ 

Description of Change Amount
ENTERPRISE FUND
Removed BOD/COD incubator from CIP; work being completed in FY 2017 (Wastewater) page 72 (9,000.00)$    

Added 1/2 of the cost of the Utility Assessment and Improvement Study (Water) 42,500.00$    

Added 1/2 of the cost of the Utility Assessment and Improvement Study (Wastewater) 40,000.00$    

Removed CIPitem, light tower for night work; This item was moved to FY 2019 CIP (Water) (15,000.00)$  

Reduced amount for Dearing Ford/Melinda Dr. sustaining valve vault from 50,000 to 30,000 (20,000.00)$  

Split Water/Sewer Right of Way clearing 50/50 between water and sewer.  Original was all -$                
budgeted in Water.

Replacement of worn and damaged asphalt at WWTP was removed from the budget.  This item (60,000.00)$  
was moved to FY 2019 CIP (Wastewater)

Replacement of existing security fence at River intake pump station was moved to FY 2019 CIP (Water) (15,000.00)$  

Replacement of Streaming Current Analyyzer was removed from the budget (Water) (16,000.00)$  

Removed repair to concrete walls at WW Main Station (Wastewater) (42,000.00)$  

Decreased 50.18 General Liability accounts by $5,700 and increased 50.10 Property insurance accounts -$                
by $5,700.  (Water and Wastewater)

Added $100,000 for piece of equipment to maintain ROW (Water) 40,000.00$    

Added $100,000 for piece of equipment to maintain ROW (Wastewater) 40,000.00$    

Add $60,000 for Fluoride Grant (Revenue and Expense) (Water) 60,000.00$    

Added Rt 43 Water Construction 91,670.00$    

Added Rt 43 Sewer Construction 276,440.00$ 

TOTAL 413,610.00$ 

Below are changes that have been made to the FY 2018 Proposed Budget and Capital Improvements Plan as a result of  

discussions held at Council Work Sessions.  

 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 
 

Agenda Placement: │ PUBLIC HEARINGS │ 

Subject Title:   │ Rezoning – Downtown Revitalization Overlay (DRO) District – 600 block of 7th Street│  
 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

An application was received in regard to a “rezoning” of 606 7th Street from “Downtown Revitalization 
Overlay” District to “C-2 General Commercial” District.   The property is currently zoned C-2, so in effect 
this application is seeking to remove it from the overlay district regulations.  Through the process, 
additional properties were added to the request, including Town property (part of Shreve Park and the 
Trade Lot, as they lie within the block). 

 

The Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on this request/application and recommends 
approval.   Tonight, Town Council will conduct a public hearing on the request/application and consider 
the Planning Commission’s recommendation.  Following the public hearing, Council has several options: 

 

 Approve the request/application pursuant to the Planning Commission’s request or as modified: 

 Deny the request/application; 

 Defer action and schedule to consideration at a future meeting. 

 

 

Planning Commission recommendation: Approval of the request/application. 

  

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  If Council seeks to approve the request/application a 
motion to approve said request/application would be required.  Motion to approve the 
request/application to “rezone” the portion of the 600 block of 7th Street, as indicated, from 
“Downtown Revitalization Overlay” district to “C-2 General Commercial” district. 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Planning Commission packet (includes Staff Report; Application; 
Additional Property Owner Letter; and Map) 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  DNW 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC     

Agenda Item #:   │ 8b │ 

Attachment #:  │ 4 │ 















  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ PUBLIC HEARINGS │ 

Subject Title:   │ Zoning Ordinance – Text Amendments│  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The Planning Commission has reviewed and offers up seventeen (17) text amendments to Chapter 86 
“Zoning” to the Town Code.  The text amendments are generally for clarification purposes; however, a 
definition change in Section 86-32 allows a tenant, as well as owners to operate a bed and breakfast.    

 

The Code Sections that are subject to change are: 

 

Section 86-22.   Definitions, general terms. 

Section 86-32.   Use Types. 

Section 86-132, 192, & 292.  Permitted Uses (R-1, R-2, and R-MHP Districts) 

Section 86-293.     General Regulations for residential manufactured home parks. 

Section 86-674.     Development and approval of towers. 

Section 86-731.     Board of Zoning Appeals Created; membership; organization. 

Section 86-731.1    Board of Zoning Appeals, ex parte communications; proceedings. 

Section 86-732.     Board of Zoning Appeals-Powers and duties. 

Section 86-736.    Requirements for granting of variance; powers regarding variances. 

 

Two sections that have more substantial changes Section 86-22 Definitions, general terms (Accessory building 
or structure and Yard, front) 86-32 Use types (Bed and Breakfast) are attached. 

  

The proposed text ordinance amendments have been provided in separate correspondence for your review 
and consideration.   

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval of the amendments to Chapter 86 “Zoning”, as 
presented.  

 

Planning Commission recommendation: Approval of the amendments to Chapter 86 “Zoning”, as 
presented.  

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the amendments to Chapter 86 
“Zoning”, as presented. 

 

Agenda Item #:   │ 8c │ 

Attachment #:  │ 5 │ 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Staff Report from Town Council’s April 11, 2017 Meeting; and 
Section 86-22 and Section 86-32 (proposed changes)  

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  DNW 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

     



 

Agenda Item:  __9f__ 

 

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

 

STAFF REPORT 
 

Meeting Date: April 11, 2017 

 
Agenda Item:  Planning Commission recommendation for Zoning Ordinance Updates 

 

Summary: The PC held a public hearing at their regular meeting on April 3, 2017 to receive public input 
for changes, corrections and updates to the Towns’ Zoning Ordinance, most recently updated in 2011.  
Noteworthy changes were to the section related to the function of the Board of Zoning Appeals as required 
by changes in the State Code.  At the request of BZA Chairman Wilson Dickerson and the BZA members, 
the PC is recommending clarification of what it means to be ‘attached’ for an accessory structure.  Staff 
has added reference sections to all the code sections where the current code on uses and * or (SUP) 
references.  This will make the code much more user friendly. 

 

Additionally, changes to the sections related to the operations of a Bed & Breakfast, if adopted, would 
permit the owner or tenant to operate it.  There was no proposed change requires the issuance of a special 
use permit (SUP) except that if the B&B is to be operated by a tenant, written permission from the owner 
must be obtained to apply for the SUP.   

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable:  Staff recommends the authorization for the Town Manager to 
advertise for a public hearing at the regular May meeting of Town Council.   

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Schedule public hearing for May 9, 2017 at 7:00 p.m.   

  

 

 



 An Ordinance to repeal, amend and re-ordain Section 86-22 of the Code of the 

Town of Altavista, 1968, by amending the definition of “accessory building or structure”. 

 Be it ordained by the Town Council of the Town of Altavista: 

 

 1.  That Section 86-22 of the Code of the Town of Altavista, 1968, be repealed, 

amended and re-ordained as follows: 

 

Sec. 86-22.  Definitions, general terms. 

 The words and terms listed below shall have the following meanings: … 

 

 Accessory building or structure means a building or structure detached from a 

principal building on the same lot and customarily incidental and subordinate to the 

principal building or use.  Where an accessory building or structure is attached to the 

principal building in a substantial manner, as by a wall or roof a covered structure made 

of materials complementary to the principal structure, such accessory building shall be 

considered a part of the principal building.  A walkway alone shall not be considered a 

substantial connection for the purposes of this ordinance.  For purposes of this chapter, 

any swimming pool in a residential district shall be considered an accessory structure…. 

 

 Yard, front means a yard between the front building line and the street right-of-

way extending across the full width of the lot.  For the purpose of placement of accessory 

buildings when the principal building exists on the lot the term front yard shall mean a 

yard between the front building wall and the street right-of way extending across the full 

width of the lot. 

 

 

 All other definitions in Sec. 86-22 remain unchanged. 

 

 

 

 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon passage by the Town 

Council of the Town of Altavista. 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
10/TA/O-86-22 – Definition of yard, front 







  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 
 

Agenda Placement: │ PUBLIC HEARINGS │ 

Subject Title:   │ Comprehensive Plan Update│  
 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The Planning Commission previously reviewed and updated the Town’s Comprehensive Plan and 
submitted their recommendation to Town Council.  Planning Commission Chair John Jordan and 
Assistant Town Manager delivered a PowerPoint presentation at the October 25, 2016 Town Council 
Work Session going of the process and detailing changes to the Comprehensive Plan.  Town Council has 
worked through the document and sought to have more information included in the Transportation 
Chapter.  As this time, Council will conduct a public hearing on the proposed update to the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan as recommended by the Planning Commission.   

 

Following the public hearing, Council can: 

 Adopt the update Town of Altavista Comprehensive Plan as presented by the Planning 
Commission (with or without amendments); 

 Table the item and schedule for future consideration; or 

 Decline the Planning Commission’s recommendation in regard to the Comprehensive Plan 
update. 

 

The proposed updates to the Town of Altavista Comprehensive Plan have previously been provided to 
Council with copies available to the public.   

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval of the update to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan.  

 

Planning Commission recommendation: Approval of the update to the Town’s Comprehensive Plan.
  

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the update to the Town’s 
Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   NO  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?   

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  DNW 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC     

Agenda Item #:   │ 8d │ 

Attachment #:  │ 6 │ 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ PUBLIC HEARINGS │ 

Subject Title:   │ Cross Connection Control Ordinance│  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 

 

The Town’s existing ordinances that deal with “cross connections” in the Utilities Section of the Town 
Code (Section 78) are in need of updating for compliance with state/federal regulations.  The proposed 
amendments would create two separate Divisions under Article IV. Water of the Utilities Chapter.  The 
first division is existing language, while the second division will be amended language dealing with the 
Cross Connection Control Ordinance (Section 78- 125 through 132). 

 

The proposed text ordinance amendments are attached for your review and consideration.   

 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval of the amendments to Chapter 78 “Utilities” in regard 
to Cross Connection Control, as presented.  

 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the amendments to Chapter 78 
“Utilities” in regard to Cross Connection Control, as presented. 

 

 

 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Cross Control Connection Ordinance 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:  TWF 

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC 

     

Agenda Item #:   │ 8e │ 

Attachment #:  │ 7 │ 



































  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ New/Unfinished Business │ 

Subject Title:   │ Trade Lot Agreement Revision – Altavista Band Boosters│  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 
 

The Town has an agreement with the Altavista Band Booster concerning operation of the Trade Lot.  
Recently, the Band Boosters took on the “Cruise Ins” and would like to make this a part of their “First 
Saturday Trade Lot” activities.   The Cruise Ins would follow the First Saturday activities during the months 
of May to October and accordingly, the Band Boosters seek to amend the Trade Lot Agreement to extend 
their time beyond the established 6:00 p.m.   Based on their request, the Cruise Ins would run until 8:30 
p.m. and seek to have the Trade Lot Agreement amend to allow this time extension on Saturday for the 
months of May through October.  Below is an excerpt from the Agreement dealing with the time of events: 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval of Band Booster request to amend the Trade Lot 
Agreement as outlined.   Add language to the “Use.” section of the agreement outlining the use of the 
property until 8:30 p.m. on first Saturdays (May through October) for “Cruise In” events. 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the Band Booster’s request to 
amend the Trade Lot agreement to allow use until 8:30 p.m. for Cruise Ins during the months of May 
through October. 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   NO  

List them in the order they should appear in packet?   

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC     

Agenda Item #:   │ 9a │ 

Attachment #:  │ 8 │ 

1. Use.  ABB shall have the use of the Premises once per month for Trade Lot Events.  The duration of 

each Trade Lot Event shall be from Noon on the Friday preceding the first Saturday of each month and 

extend to 6:00 p.m. on the first Saturday of each month.  The exception being that vendors in the following 

spaces (27-64, 141-192) will be allowed to access to the Trade Lot beginning at 8:00 a.m. on Friday 

morning.)The aforesaid period shall include set up and take down of vendors.    For Uncle Billy’s Day 

weekend, ABB shall be allowed use of the Premises beginning at 4:00 p.m. on Thursday prior to Uncle Billy’s 

Day (1st Saturday in June). 

 



  

Town of Altavista, Virginia 

Regular Meeting Agenda Form 
 

Meeting Date: May 9, 2017   

 

 

 

 

Agenda Placement: │ New/Unfinished Business │ 

Subject Title:   │ Classification/Compensation Study│  

 

SUBJECT HIGHLIGHTS 
 

The Town contracted with Springsted to conduct a Classification/Compensation Study.   The final report 
was issued last week.  At this time, staff is seeking Council’s direction on the Job Titles/Descriptions,  
Salary Grade/Ranges, and the Implementation Option.  

 

Staff seeks to have this portion of the study approved, realizing that full implementation would not occur 
until the FY2018 Budget is adopted. 

 

Council may: 

 Adopt the Classification/Compensation Study; 

 Place on the May Work Session Agenda for additional discussion 
 

 

Staff recommendation, if applicable: Approval of the Classification/Compensation Study, with final 
implementation being effective July 1, 2017, based on the adopted FY2018 Budget. 

 

Action(s) requested or suggested motion(s):  Motion to approve the Classification/Compensation 
Study as outlined above. 

 

Staff Review Record________________________________________________________________ 

Are there exhibits for this agenda item?   YES 

List them in the order they should appear in packet?  Pay Scale; Title & Grade Listing 

Department Head initials and comments, if applicable:   

Finance Director initials and comments, if applicable:   

Town Attorney initials and comments, if applicable: 

Town Manager initials and /or comments: JWC     

Agenda Item #:   │ 9b │ 

Attachment #:  │ 9 │ 







  

Town Manager’s Report – For Month of April 2017 
 
Booker Building  
 

 Scheduling a visit to The Prizery in South Boston. 

 

Strategic Planning Retreat 
 

 Staff is working with finding an acceptable date for Council.   
 Working with facilitator on creating a draft agenda. 

 

Staunton River RIFA 
 

 Staff continuing to work with other jurisdictions in regard to creation of the Staunton River 
Regional Industrial Facility Authority. 

 Staff working with Peed & Bortz on the Utility Assessment for this project.  
 
Broadband Planning Study 
 

 Update provided at April 25th Town Council Work Session. 
 Staff working on additional information and implementation scenarios. 

 
Water Plant Projects 

 Water Treatment Plant Electrical Updates project (Southern Air) Kick off meeting conducted 
on May 4th. 

 SCADA Phase I project (Moore’s Electric) underway.   
 Water Model/GIS Mapping – Completed 
 Dominion Effluent Reuse – Dominion is currently in spring outage maintenance mode and 
 reports no additional progress on this item since last report.  Staff working on connecting  
             with Dominion officials to advance this discussion. 

 



~ ADMINISTRATION ~ 

 

 

 $-

 $100.00

 $200.00

 $300.00

 $400.00

 $500.00

 $600.00

 $700.00

 $800.00

 $900.00

 $1,000.00

Booker Building
Rental

Green Hill Cemetery
Plots

Opening/Closing
Graves

Shreve Park Pavilion
Rentals

English Park Pavilion
Rentals

Apr-16

Apr-17

2 1

1 1

3 2

3 7











   TOWN OF ALTAVISTA    

   MEAL TAX COLLECTIONS    

         

   Month Collections     

   Apr-15 $62,546.00     

   May-15 $66,308.00     

   Jun-15 $64,146.00     

   Jul-15 $60,786.00     

   Aug-15 $61,309.00     

   Sep-15 $61,560.00     

   Oct-15 $63,460.00     

   Nov-15 $55,798.00     

   Dec-15 $61,928.00     

   Jan-16 $51,250.00     

   Feb-16 $57,390.00     

   Mar-16 $64,020.00     

   Apr-16 $61,664.00     

   May-16 $62,702.00     

   Jun-16 $64,356.00     

   Jul-16 $77,934.00     

   Aug-16 $79,415.00     

   Sep-16 $78,369.00     

   Oct-16 $77,843.00     

   Nov-16 $76,293.74  YTD Total   

   Dec-16 $80,126.95 FY2016 $537,501.00   

   Jan-17 $71,669.47 FY2017 $698,568.88   

   Feb-17 $74,876.88     

   Mar-17 $82,040.84     

         
 

          

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         

         
 

$40,000.00

$45,000.00

$50,000.00

$55,000.00

$60,000.00

$65,000.00

$70,000.00

$75,000.00

$80,000.00

$85,000.00

A
p

r-
1

5

M
ay

-1
5

Ju
n

-1
5

Ju
l-

1
5

A
u

g-
1

5

Se
p

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

D
ec

-1
5

Ja
n

-1
6

Fe
b

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n

-1
6

Ju
l-

1
6

A
u

g-
1

6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
ec

-1
6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

Meals Tax Collections



 

  
To: Town Council 
From: Dennis Jarvis, II, Director of Economic Development 
Cc: J. Waverly Coggsdale, III, Town Manager 
RE: April 2017 Economic Development Update 
 
 

Networking:   

 Director met with economic development officials from Pittsylvania County, City of Danville. 

 Director met with officials from Virginia Economic Development Partnership (VEDP). 

 Director met with director of the Lynchburg Regional Business Alliance (LRBA).  

 Director attended CVCC Small Business Appreciation breakfast.  

 Director attended LRBA Economic Development Summit.  

 Director met with newly appointed Secretary of Agriculture.  

 Director met with officials from Junior Achievement.  

 Director attended the LRBA Small Business Summit.  

 Director was asked to deliver the commencement speech to the graduating class at VTI. 

Existing Business and Retention  

 Director met with officials from BGF. 

 Director met officials from Abbott.   

 Director met with officials from the Standard.  

 Director met with Altavista Instrument and Controls. 

Marketing  

 Director attended the Craft Beverage Expo with VEDP and the LRBA in Washington, D.C.  

 Director hosted site visit for Project Grow.  

 Director provided marketing materials for site visit from Project EWI.  

 Director began marketing campaign for leads from the Craft Beverage Expo. 

 Director participated in prospect call with 310 Marketing.  

 Director secured booth to highlight local retail market at the Buy the “Burg trade show. 

Develop Products 

 Director met with the legal counsel for the Staunton River RIFA (Regional Industrial Facilities 

Authority).  

 Director participated in a grant submittal for the Staunton River RIFA (Regional Industrial 

Facilities Authority) with VEDP.  

  



Monthly Report to Council  
 

 

Date:  May 10, 2017 

 

To:   Town Council  

 

From:  Dan Witt, Assistant Town Manager 

 

Re:  April 2017 Reporting  

 

 

1. Zoning/Code Related Matters: March Permits  

 

DATE PERMIT # APPLICANT NAME & ADDRESS REASON FOR PERMIT  
4-Apr 008-17 Vicky Creasy- 1004 7th Street Adding a 12'x11' dining room to back of the house

5-Apr 009-17 Linda Bailey-Stone 1001 8th St Adding attached carport to side and concrete slab to other side

7-Apr 010-17 Sav'on Sign, Vinton VA Reface signs at Wendy's Restaurant 

7-Apr 011-17 Johathan Wilson, 1817 Avondale Dr. Home Occupation- office for Home Repairs business 

26-Apr 013-17 Patricia Steele, Vinton VA TNT Fireworks at Walmart, July 4th week  
 

 Met with David Hall regarding the clean-up and removal of junk cars at B&D on Main 

Street.  He had until the end of April to complete this, which has not been done.  Staff 

has reported the zoning violation to Lisa with the Motor Vehicle Dealer Board and she 

will begin the process to revoke his licenses to operate at used car lot. 

 Working with a citizen on 7th Street regarding an issue with feral cats. 

 Worked with Carmen Perri on the availability of the weekend trucks to take down a 

house and haul to the landfill.  Habitat plans to build two homes on the site on Amherst 

Avenue.    

 5 grass violation notices sent out in April.   

 Drafted notices for the Council public hearings scheduled for May 9. 

   

2. Site Plans Reviewed and/or Approved:  

 None     

   
3. Planning Commission (PC) Related: 

 Staffed the April regular meeting which included two public hearings.  The first to 

consider a rezoning application from Mitch Hailey where no one but the applicant 

spoke.  The second for corrections and updates to the Zoning Ordinance where no 

one spoke either.  Drafted memos containing the PC’s recommendations to Town 

Council.   

 May meeting was cancelled.  

 

4. AOT Related 

 Nothing noted.            

 



 

5. ACTS Related 

 Validated daily ridership and revenue for bus system (April) - see bus report.   

 Operations reimbursements submitted for March 2017.  

 Daily rider and fee counts tallied. 

 Staff met with Mark Roberts and received a quote for the new bus- Sonny 

Merryman has the state contract.  DRPT funding will not be available until July 1 

so the bus will be ordered at that time.   Unless told otherwise free fares will begin 

June 1st as in past years.  

 Staff started working on a policy and procedure document that DRPT is requiring each 

grantee to adopt (by council).  This is new and DRPT provided a rough template.  It has 

a financial policy piece that Tobie is working to complete.  Staff plans to have a draft 

ready for Council’s review at their May work session.  

 Quarterly review meeting with DRPT grants administer, Andrew Riddle.     

      
6. Projects and Administrative Related: 

 Updated GIC.     

 Certified March bank statements.  

 Attended Managers/Assistants’ luncheon at Sandusky Historic site in Lynchburg. 

 Completed final updates for the FY2018-2022 CIP.       

 Attended Town Council work session and regular meeting.  Prepared TM weekly and 

Council monthly reports.     

 Transferred all new phones and iPads to the Sprint Network. 

 Attended Uncle Billy’s Day planning meeting.   

 

Route 43 Streetscape and Utility Project       

 Worked on the budget and TAP grant awards for this project.  Earl is working to 

update his proposal and will take out the design work VDOT is going to complete 

for the pedestrian crosswalks and actuators.   VDOT, Gerry Harder, provided 

information to Earl for his proposal.     

 Corresponded with VDOT to confirm the Town could apply for additional TAP 

funding this fall, which it can.  Passed along information regarding meetings that 

Council members are encouraged to attend to improve chances for being awarded 

tobacco grant funding.  Corresponded with VDOT and Hurt & Proffitt to schedule a 

kick-off meeting for project prior to beginning design. 

 Staffed the design kick-off meeting at VDOT office in Lynchburg.  Discussed the 

NEPA reporting requirements/documents, EZ-121 (Hazmat), EQ-555(Water 

quality).  Discussed the Scoping Report- there is still a question as to whose 

responsible for this- but there is a 130 window for completing, October 24, 2017.  

Nick reported that he found $21,000 for the Town in our contract: the VDOT 

contingency for a contract under $5 million is 5% and no the 10% included in our 

budget.   

 Survey is to be completed by the end of May and passed on to VDOT so they can begin 

design of the pedestrian signals.  

 



 

7.  Recreation Committee 

 Met with Town Manager and Councilman George regarding the cemetery trail.  

 Title Insurance documents have been issued and paid for and all grant documents have 

been submitted to Sarah with DCR for reimbursement.  John Eller provided the value of 

his hours on this project and based on my calculations the Town will receive a VLCF 

grant check in the amount of $20,868.50.   

 Gay & Neel was the firm selected to design the canoe launch site.  Staff, engineers and 

Campbell County E&S will meet on May 5th for a kick-off meeting.     

 Staff scheduled and conducted interviews with two firms interested in designing the 

canoe launch site.  A firm will be selected the week of April 10th.    

 Staff has contacted DCR, Synthia Waymack, regarding ADA requirements for both the 

site and launch itself, should a DCR grant be awarded.  The site is not a problem, 

however, logistically, the launch itself could provide some challenges and likely be cost 

prohibitive.   This is Synthia’ s response:  

‘For the RTP, as of today, it has not been required that every recreational trail 
be constructed to be 100% ADA.    However, recreation providers are expected 
to make sure they maintain program accessibility as failure to do so may 
constitute discrimination.’ 

    
 



1 
 

 
                         David T. Garrett, Jr. Director of Public Works● P.O. Box 420, Altavista, VA 24517  

                           Telephone: (434) 369-6050 ● Fax: (434) 369-6981 ● dtgarrett@altavistava.gov 

 

 

 

Public Works Monthly Report 

                                    April 2017 
 

During the month of November, the Public Works Crews were busy with the following 

Maintenance, Repairs, and other assorted task. 

These activities reflect the Town Wide Goals of Stewardship, Public Safety and Improving 

Customer Service as well as Improving Altavista’s Environment and Image. 

 

 

Work Orders Process and Completed for the Month 269 

 

 

Street Department:  During the month the crew has had one Equipment Operator out of work 

due to a medical condition. As of May 1, 2017 this employee has resigned his position due 

medical reason. Currently the street crew only has one supervisor, one equipment operator, and 

two laborers. We are in the process of posting the vacant position and it is our goal to fill this 

position the first part of June.  

 

The street crew also has been busy this month mowing town wide, weed eating, completed 

special project on Myrtle Lane, tree trimming, storm drainage ditch cleaning, sidewalk repairs, 

assisted in reading monthly meters, hauling millings for parking area at the town shop   

 

○ Mowing-------------------------------------------------Town Wide 2 times for the month 

○ Litter Pick up---------------------------------------------------------------------45 Bags 

○ Weed Control---------------------------------------------------------------------60 Gallons 

○ Sweeping Streets-----------------------------------------------------------------62 Miles  

○ Weekend Trucks------------------------------------------------------------------8 

○ Other Traffic Roadside Maintenance On Streets----------------------------- 419 Hrs                                                                                 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:dtgarrett@altavistava.gov


2 
 

Buildings & Grounds and Sanitation:  During the month the crew has had one employee out of 

work due to FMLA leave and this employee retired. As of May 1, 2017 this position has not been 

filled due to lack of qualified applicants. We are still in the process of reviewing applications and 

conducting interviews. Currently the street crew only has one supervisor, one equipment operator 

II, solid waste operator, and one laborers. We are in the process of posting the vacant position 

and it is our goal to fill this position the first part of June.  

 

The B&G crew also has been busy this month mowing at the parks, weed eating, completed 

special project installing the temporary fence at English, planting flowers in flower beds, 

cleaning flower beds, weed control, playground equipment repairs, solid waste collection, bulk 

collections, brush collections.   

 

    

○ Green Hill Cemetery – Burial----------------------------------------------1 

○ Green Hill Cemetery – Cremations----------------------------------------0 

○  Brush Collected Stops------------------------------------------------------125 Stops 

○  Brush Collected Loads-----------------------------------------------------5 Loads  

○  Bulk Collection Stops------------------------------------------------------128 Stops 

○  Bulk Collection Tonnage--------------------------------------------------13.28 Tons 

○  Solid Waste Tonnage-------------------------------------------------------81.71 Tons 

○ Labor Hours at Green Hill Cemetery to maintain Grave Sites---------5.5 Hours 

○ Maintain Park Buildings----------------------------------------------------142.50 Man Hours 

○ Maintain Parks, Mowing, Flowers Beds, Weed Control---------------329.50 Man Hours 

○ Mowing-----------------------------------------------------------------------85 Acres 

  



Monthly Staff  Report  

           

Date: 5/4/2017 

TO: Town Manager 

FROM: Tom Fore 

DEPARTMENT: Utilities- Public Works 

MONTH: April 2017 

           
# of Sewer 
Connections   0      

           
# of Water 
Taps    0      

           
# of Meters Read 
Monthly   91      

# of Meters Read 
Quarterly   0      

           
# of Loads  of Sludge to 
Landfill  16      

           
# of Location Marks made 
for Miss Utility  111      

           

# of Meters Replaced   0      

           
# of Water Lines 
Repaired  0  

# of Sewer Lines 
Unstopped 0  

Locations:     Locations:    

           

           

      Sewer Video Footage: 415  

      Locations:    

      905 9th St.    

      2217 Beverly Heights   

      Sewer Cleaned Footage: 0  

           

      

# of Sewer Cleanouts 
Installed 0  

      Locations:    
 



Monthly Staff Report 

           

DATE     5/2/2017               

TO:     Town Manager             

FROM:     Tom Fore               

DEPARTMENT:    Waste Water Treatment Plant         

MONTH:     April 2017               

           

           

Average Daily Flow  

  
2.10  mgd 

 

   

       

 

TSS Reduction  

  
95 % 

   

 

   

       

 

BOD Reduction  

  
99 % 

   

 

   

       

 

VPDES Violations  

       

 

   

       

 

Sludge ( Regional Land Fill)  
  

249 tons 
   

 

           

Rain Total 6.92 Inches   Snow Total  0 Inches  

           

           
 



◄ Apr 2017 May  2017 Jun 2017 ► 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 
National Small 
Business Week 
April 30-May 6 

1  
Planning Commission 
5:00 PM 

2  
 

3  
 

4  
Avoca Student Event Day 
National Day of Prayer 

5  
 

6  
 

7  
 

8  
 

9  
Council Meeting  
7:00 PM 

10  
 

11  
 

12  
 

13  
 

14  
Avoca Mother’s Day Tea 
 
Mother’s Day 

15  
 

16  
 

17  
 

18  
 

19  
 

20  
 

21  
 

22  
 

23  
EDA Meeting 8:15AM 
Town Hall 
Council Work Session 
5:00 PM 
 

24  
 

25  
Business Appreciation 
Lunch-Campbell Co &  
Altavista 
12:00 

26  
 

27  
 

28  
 

29  
Memorial Day 
Town Offices Closed 
No ACTS Bus 

30  
 

31  
 

Notes: 

 

 

http://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/April-2017
http://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/June-2017


◄ May 2017 June  2017 Jul 2017 ► 

Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

    1  2 Unclie Billy’s Day 

    Festival 
 

3 Uncle Billy’s Day 

Festival 
    Altavista on Track 
Cruise In 
 
 

4  
 

5  
Planning Commission  

6  
 

7  
 

8  
 

9  
 

10  
 

11  
 

12  
 

13  
Council Meeting  
7:00 PM 

14  
 

15  
 

16  
 

17  
 

18  
 

19  
 

20  
 

21  
 

22  
 

23  
Chamber of Commerce 
TGIF 6-9:00 PM 

24  
 

25  
 

26  
 

27  
EDA Meeting 8:15AM 
Town Hall 
Council Work Session 
5:00 PM 
 

28  
 

29  
 

30  
 

Notes: 

 

http://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/May-2017
http://www.wincalendar.com/Holiday-Calendar/July-2017



	01 May Agenda
	03 CA_Minutes_TCAF
	03a Council Minutes April 11,  2017
	03b Council Work Session April 25, 2017
	04 CA_Financial Reports_TCAF
	04a Check Register April 2017
	04b April 2017_Revenue_Expenditure Report
	04c April 2017_Reserve Balance_Investment Report
	05 CA_Gus the Bus Request_TCAF
	05a Gus the Bus Request
	05b GUS the Bus Location Requests
	06 CA_Deliquent Utility List_TCAF
	06a Memo to Waverly RE Write Off of Delinquent Water and Sewer Accounts 2017
	07 PH_FY2018 Budget and CIP_TCAF
	07a Public Hearing_Attachment_FY 2018 Budget
	08 PH_Rezoning DRO_600 Block 7th Street_TCAF
	08a PC Recommendation Rezoning Alt. Apl.
	09 PH_Text Amendments_Zoning Ordinance_TCAF
	09a PC REcommendation ZO Amend Staff Report
	09b O-86-22 Definition of yard, front
	09c Revised BandB sections
	10 PH_Comprehensive Plan_TCAF
	11 PH_Cross Control Connection Ordinance_TCAF
	11a Ordinance 78-121 through 78-131 Water and Cross Connections v2
	12 Band Boosters Trade Lot AGreement Amendment_TCAF
	13 Classification_Compensation Study_TCAF
	13a Classificaiton_Comp Attachments
	14 Town Managers Report
	15 Admin Report
	15a APD Report
	15b Meals Tax Report_April
	15c ED Report April 2017
	15e Community Development- Council Report May 9, 2017
	15f Monthly Report PW April 2017
	15g Utilities Monthly Report
	15h WWTP Monthly Report April
	16 May-June 2017 Calendar
	17 VTI_Thank You_Donation_VFDs

